
COMBINED BOARD OF SELECTMAN AND BOARD OF FINANCE 
PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING 
MINUTES OF MEETING--DRAFT 
MARCH 20, 2012 
 
Pursuant to the call and written notice, the Public Budget Hearing of the Board of 
Selectman and the Board of Finance was held on Monday March 20, 2012 at 7:00 pm in 
the Board of Education Administrative Offices, Seminar Room 300, and 501 Kings 
Highway East, Fairfield, CT. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chairman Thomas Flynn, Robert Bellitto, Jr., Ken Brachfeld,  Kevin Kiley, Mary 
LeClerc, Robert Stone, Christopher DeWitt, James Brown, Elaine Gaffney 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
None 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Michael Tetreau, Cristin McCarthy-Vahey, Board of Selectmen, Town of Fairfield, Jim 
Walsh, Board of Selectmen (7:30 pm) 
Paul Hiller, Chief Fiscal Officer and Clerk of the Board of Finance 
Linda Gardiner, Budget Director, Town of Fairfield 
Mary Carroll-Mirylees, Director of Human Resources, Town of Fairfield 
Robert Mayer, Chief of Staff, First Selectman Office, Town of Fairfield 
 
Chair Tom Flynn called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm 
 
PENSION 
Elizabeth Churney, FAS, Hooker & Holcombe, Inc. , Actuary contracted by the Town of 
Fairfield,  presented t the Boards the new Town of Fairfield Post-Retirement Plans-July 
1, 2011 Actuarial Valuation Review.  Ms. Churney noted that her company had recently 
completed an experience study for the last five years and had recently presented the 
results to the Joint Pension Boards for the Town of Fairfield, and that the Joint Board has 
accepted all the recommendations outlined from this study. 
 
Ms. Churney explained the results presented to the Boards (see separate handout from 
Hooker & Holcombe), noting significant changes, calculations, method changes and 
dollar amounts and the potential impact affects these assumptions will have. 
 
Discussion took place experience study and the results.  Board members were concerned 
with the drastic result changes; the years that were included in the experience study ( 
some of the worse/ volatile economic times in our country in history); long term 
estimates, change in rates, length of years used in the study; retirement trends.  Board 
would like further information on conclusions obtained. 
 



  Chair Tom Flynn asked for a detail list of the potential dollar impact each individual 
assumption change would have. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld requested for the Board of Finance an investment rate change comparison 
of 5%, 6% and 7% to evaluate ARC differences. 
 
Mr. Flynn requested a sensitivity study for ¼% changes in experience studies. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the investment allocations overseen by the Joint Boards, 
and Board Member Brian Vehey addressed the Boards on the their questions and 
commented on recent investment changes that have been put into place.  Mr. Tetreau 
advised the Boards that there is scheduled a full presentation specifically on these matters 
for the Board of Finance meeting in April.   
 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 It was noted that a bi-annual evaluation is done on the retire medical benefits and the last 
one was in 2010; assets beginning to grow. 
 
Mr. Hiller advised the Boards that advisors have recently been changed and asset re-
location is limited by State Statue – much tighter restricted than Pension fund allocations. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ms. Carroll-Mirylees stated that she has observed over the past years the changing trend 
in retirement age- people are now working longer. 
 
No other Public Comments. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Mr. Robert Mayer noted to the board Worker’s Compensation increase –prior years 
changes in experience and reporting. 
Mr. Mayer also noted that new February claim figures have just become available and 
that they have been included in tonight’s presentation so that to provide most current and 
updated accounting figures. 
 
It should be noted that the Board of Education has not been made aware of the new 
February claim totals before tonight’s presentation. 
 
Representatives from AON Hewitt, Health Insurance Broker for the Town of Fairfield, 
were on hand to present the most current claim numbers and to answer Board members 
questions. 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 



It was brought to the Boards attention that claims in the Board of Education side have 
increased over the past few months, specifically in the month of February, causing 
concern for budget overage during the final months of this fiscal year and possible next 
year’s budget.  Since these figures have just been obtained, detailed research on these 
numbers is not yet available.  AON and the BOE will look into the new trend of increased 
claims once information is more readily available. 
 
Discussion on how these increased claims will affect the current projection figures on the 
Insurance Fund and if the dollar amounts rise the adjusted cash reserve figures. 
 
Mr. Mayer noted the negative funding position in the Insurance Fund and that this Fund 
needs to be addressed per our rating agencies. 
 
Discussion took place on the possible actions that the Board of Education could make to 
cover budget cost overages due to increased medical claims.  Dr. Title informed that 
Boards that the BOE only has the power to authorize the movement of budget funds/line 
items and that he will communicate directly with the Board should it be necessary. 
 
It was noted that presented budgets must finish the approval process before any changes 
can be requested and made. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
David Becker-RTM-on potential cuts to budgets, adjustments should be fixed and should 
not be offset by adjustments to other line items. 
 
No other Public Comments. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
Director Mary Carroll- Mirylees presented the budget to the Boards, noting the majority 
of the increase in budget is the additional 1 million assigned to increase the Risk 
Management aspect in the Insurance Fund and an additional request for $551,000 
directed to Worker’s Compensation. 
 
Ms. Mirylees noted the fluctuation in the insurance lines and told the board we are in the  
2nd year extension with CIRMA and show stabilization in this program. 
 
Board Members were concerned with the rising costs in Heart and Hypertension claims; 
Ms. Mirylees informed the board that the Town had 2 large surgeries for Heart & 
Hypertension this past year, and large settlements come from such surgeries.  Ms. 
Mirylees also commented on the difficulty in properly budgeting for this line item due to 
many uncertain variables. 
 
 

Page 3 of  5 



Mr. Hiller noted that the Heart & Hypertension Fund used to be included in the Insurance 
Fund until about 4-5 years ago, at which it was taken out in an attempt to make the 
Insurance fund more stable.  Mr. Flynn asked that we look into this change to see if the 
Board of Finance every approved this action. 
 
 
Mr. Brown questioned the worker’s compensation numbers and trends. 
Ms. Mirylees told the Boards that the number is rising due to salary increase, rise in 
medical costs and higher awards being granted by the State.  It was also noted that there 
are 5-6 very large serious claims for back injuries from the BOE that are included in these 
figures. Also noted that town is working to settle more claims, which is cost beneficial to 
the town. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned the Errors and Omission line items and asked if the Town Attorney 
is covered in this cost.  Ms. Mirlyees will research and get an answer on this for the 
Boards. 
Mr. Walsh also questioned claims against the town –General Liability and Property 
Damages-and wondered why the line amount is down and who recommends this budget.  
Mr. Hiller responded that all claims are reviewed by Town Attorneys or Assistant Town 
Attorney, Including Saxl, Fleishman, Newman and Kennelly and all info on this line item 
is on their recommendation.   
Mr. Hiller also noted that the Town is working harder to settle claims and those most 
recent claims have been settled for lower dollars amounts. 
 
Mr. DeWitt suggested that a town wide risk analysis should be done 
 
Mr. Flynn questioned the vacant Risk Manager position and noted that with all the 
seriousness of questions on these budget line items that filling this position as soon as 
possible is critical.  Ms. Mirlyees stated the position has been vacant since October, and 
although she had attempted to fill this position it has not worked out and that she will 
hopes to fill it soon. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
CONTINGENCY/FUND BALANCE 
It was noted that the Contingency Account was discussed in Private Executive session 
and no discussion will take place tonight. 
 
Mr. Hiller noted that the Ratings Agencies have commented on the Internal Fund balance 
being on the lower edge.  Mr. Tetreau stated that he has earmarked 1 mil in additional 
funding in this account this year and his desire to increase this fund with a multi year 
investment strategy. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 

Page 4 of  5 



 
 
 
 
 
DEBT SERVICE 
Mr. Hiller noted the savings being reflected as a result of refunding in January. 
Mr. Brachfeld asked how confident Mr. Hiller was on the predicted interest rates.  Mr. 
Hiller informed the Boards that he is confident on short term rates, however going out 20 
years is much more risk. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Bellitto. 
Meeting adjourned at 10:53 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Christine S. Boccamazzo 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 


